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Dear Mr. Sims: 

The Commission has conducted an investigation to determine whether the proposed 
merger of the only two hospitals in Great Falls, Montana -- Columbus Hospital and Montana 
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Deaconess and Columbus on March 7, 1996. 
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facilities without the approval of the Department. The hospitals must permit physicians to 
participate in health plans not affiliated with the hospital, and not discriminate against physicians 
who do so. The hospitals must grant equal access to all qualified physicians, and engage in good 
faith negotiations with all health plans. Referrals must be made in a non-discriminatory manner, 
and the hospitals may not oppose certificate-of-need applications without notifying the 
Department. 

The hospitals will establish a Community Health Council composed of community and 
health care representatives to provide additional oversight in the regulatory scheme, with 
representatives of consumers and third-party payers appointed by the Attorney General. This 
entity will set community health goals, critique annual reports and strategic plans, and act on 
consumer complain!~ along with a Consumer Ombudsman. 

The Department will supervise the COP A's implementation and will have the power to 
inspect records, interview personnel, and call special meetings of the board of directors. If the 
merged hospitals fail to correct any violation of the terms and conditions of the COPA, the 
Department may enforce those conditions by seeking any remedial action, including a court order 
to compel compliance. The hospitals are liable for all expenses incurred in analyzing progress 
reports and verifying compliance. If the Department determines that the COPA's terms and 
conditions are inadequate to effectuate its goals, it may impose further restrictions or modify any 
of the existing terms. The COP A and its conditions are binding on all successors and assigns. 

In reaching the conclusion that a COPA should issue with the attached conditions, the 
State appears to have played a substantial role in determining the specifics of its regulation of the 
merged hospitals. Montana has recognized, by "its ongoing regulation after the merger is 
consummated, that the merger is not a singular event in its effects, but.a transaction with 
continuing consequences. 

In examining thi:; matter, we have not made a determination that the conditions attached 
to the COPA sufficiently address the substantial anticompetitive concerns stemming from this 
transaction: Indeed, there may be many reasons that they do not. Nor have we made a 
determination that the regulatory scheme devised by Montana is in any way more appropriate 
than the national policy favoring competition that is articulated in the antitrust laws. But in light 
of the intent of the statute allowing for the COP A, the comprehensive nature of the price 
regulations, the other conditions attached to the COPA, the State's substantial role in determining 
the specifics of the regulatory scheme, the ongoing nature of the regulations, and the State's 
intent to implement the regulations in their specific details, we do not plan to take further action 
at this time. Absent future evidence of inadequate active, ongoing supervision of the merged 
hospitals, no further action regarding this transaction is planned. Accordingly, the investigation 
is closed. 
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This action is not to be construed as a detennination that a violation may not have 
occurred, just as the pendency of an investigation should not be construed as a determination that 
a violation occurred. The Commission reserves the right to take such further action as.the public 
interest may require. 

Sincerely, 

Robert F. LeibenJuft 




